Brigham Young University Law School

BYU Law Digital Commons

Utah Court of Appeals Briefs (2007-)

2019

MACAELA DANYELE DAY, Appellee, vs. TYLER BARNES, Appellant. : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES
I. WHETHER THE RELOCATION HEARING DENIED APPELLANT DUE PROCESS?
II. WHETHER THE COURT'S FINDINGS ARE DEFICIENT? 2
III. WHETHER THE RELOCATION RULING WAS ERRONEOUS? 2
STATEMENT OF THE CASE
STATEMENT OF THE FACTS 4-32
SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT 32
ARGUMENT
I. THE RELOCATION HEARING DENIED APPELLANT DUE PROCESS
II. THE FINDINGS ARE GROSSLY INADEQUATE
III. THE RELOCATION RULING IS ERRONEOUS 50-55
CONCLUSION 55
CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE
ADDENDUM
Addendum A — II C A Section 30-3-37

Addendum B — Utah R. Civ. P. 108
Addendum C — Findings of Fact and Order on Objection (Filed 4/25/14)
Addendum D — Order Regarding Petitioner's Objections to Commissioner's Recommendation (Filed 10/19/16)

Addendum E — Ruling and Order On Petitioner's Objections to Commissioner's Recommendation (After Remand)

TABLE OF AUTHORITIES

CASES

Day v. Barnes, 2018 UT App. 143, 427 P.3d 1272
Elmer v. Elmer, 776 P.2d 599 (UT 1989)
Hogge v. Hogge, 649 P.2d 51 (UT 1982)
Hudema v. Carpenter, 1999 UT App. 290, 989 P.2d 491 42, 52
Pingree v. Pingree, 365 P.3d 713 (UT App. 2015)
Rayner v. Rayner, 316 P.3d 455 (UT App. 2013)
Robertson v. Robertson, 2016 UT App. 55, 370 P.3d 569 2, 35, 42, 45, 50, 52
State ex rel. A.R. v. State, 2017 UT App. 153, 402 P.3d 206
Taylor v. Elison, 2011 UT App. 272, 263 P.3d 448
Wilson v. Sanders, 2019 UT App. 126 50
<u>STATUTES</u>
U.C.A. § 30-3-10

U.C.A. § 30-3-37
U.C.A. § 30-3-10.2
U.C.A. § 62A-41-201(1)(a)
COURT RULES
Utah R. Civ. P. 54(b)
Utah R. Civ. P. 108
Rule 4-903, Operation of the Courts
Rule of Professional Conduct 4.2



IN THE UTAH COURT OF APPEALS, 450 S. State Street, Salt Lake City. Utah 84078 (801) 578-3900

MACAELA DANYELE DAY, :

APPELLANT'S PRINCIPAL BRIEF

Appellee, :

VS.

Case No. 20190277

TYLER BARNES, :

Appellant. :

INTRODUCTION

A Massachusetts resident seeks to return with her child after turning over custody to a Utah resident by coercion. This case was originally brought as a Uniform Child Custody Jurisdiction Enforcement Act action (hereinafter referred to as "UCCJEA"). This court in *Day v. Barnes*, 2018 UT App. 143, 427 P.3d 1272, ruled that the judge erred by imposing a burden upon Appellant to prove that the commissioner's recommendation was erroneous under Civil Rule 108. Upon remand, the judge relied upon his 2014 findings from a temporary order in the UCCJEA hearing – which had merged with a final order in the UCCJEA action – to rule against relocation. Appellant contends that the relocation hearing violated her

right to procedural due process.

STATEMENT OF ISSUES

- 1. Whether the relocation hearing denied Appellant due process? The standard of review is de novo. *Hogge v. Hogge*, 649 P.2d 51, 54 (UT 1982). This issue was preserved during the court's relocation hearing, (R. 2221, 17-25; R. 2222, 6-7; R. 2225-26; R. 2227, 1-18; R. 2228, 4-5, 9-10, R. 2228, 15-18, R. 2231, 1-17; R. 2564, 18-25, 2565, l. 1-10 and tacitly by motion. R. 1323.
- 2. Whether the court's findings of fact are legally deficient? The standard of review is clearly erroneous. *Robertson v. Robertson*, 2016 UT App. 55, ¶5, 370 P.3d 569. This issue was preserved when Appellant filed her objection to the Commissioner's recommendation, R. 2046-55.
- 3. Whether the court ruling on relocation was erroneous? The standard of review for a determination of custody is abuse of discretion. *Id.* at 573, ¶9. Since the issue challenges the Court's ultimate ruling, it is inherently preserved.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On May 1, 2013, Appellant filed a child custody petition under the UCCJEA. In 2012, Appellee had filed a custody action in Massachusetts where the child and Appellant had been living with her family. The commissioner determined that Massachusetts was the home state of the child. R. 432. The commissioner

indicated that he would consult with the Court in Massachusetts regarding convenient forum. Appellee dismissed his Massachusetts action. The parties agreed that Utah had subject matter jurisdiction. R. 600.

Argument before the commissioner regarding temporary custody occurred on October 1, 2013. On November 22, 2013, the commissioner entered his recommendation. He allowed Appellant one week of parent-time in Massachusetts every six weeks, and joint physical custody during her college breaks. Appellant objected.

On March 20 and 21, 2014, the judge held an evidentiary hearing. On April 25, 2014, the judge entered his written findings and temporary order. R. 1052.

On December 4, 2014, Appellant moved under Civil Rule 54(b) and the law of the case doctrine to modify the court's temporary order. R. 1323. Rather than ruling on the motion, the court scheduled a Rule 4-903 conference.

On February 24, 2015, the parties met for the conference. The custody evaluator, Dr. Matthew Davies, appeared and presented his prospective recommendations to the parties. The parties reached a stipulation. The stipulation was entered as a final order on June 18, 2015.

Appellant relocated to Utah in July of 2015 to become the primary caregiver under the terms of final order. She attended college through distance learning.

Due to continued wrangling with Appellee, on November 10, 2015, Appellant moved to relocate to Massachusetts.

On January 21, 2016, the commissioner heard oral argument on relocation.

The commissioner denied Appellant's motion. Appellant objected.

On July 6 and 8, 2016, the judge held an evidentiary hearing on Appellant's objection. He denied the motion from the bench. On October 19, 2016, the court entered its written findings and order. R. 1959.

Appellant filed her notice of appeal on November 17, 2016. Appellee filed a notice of cross-appeal on December 1, 2016.

On July 27, 2018, this court issued an opinion which required remand, finding that the judge had misapplied Civil Rule 108.

Upon remand, the judge heard oral argument. The court issued its ruling on February 20, 2019. Appellant filed a timely notice of appeal on March 22, 2019.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

A. THE RELOCATION RULING.

The female child, A.D., was born on December 10, 2010. R. 34. During the presentation of Appellant's first witness at the evidentiary hearing, the court ruled that it would not receive evidence that had occurred prior to its temporary order entered on April 25, 2014. Faced with the court's ruling, Appellant's asked the

court if it would at least allow the transcript of the hearing held on April 25, 2014, to be made part of the relocation record. R. 2221, 17-25; R. 2222, 6-7; R. 2225, 1-2; R. 2226, 12-25; R. 2228, 4-5, 9-10, R. 2228, 15-18, R. 2231, 1-17; R. 2564, 18-25, 2565, 1. 1-10. The judge agreed. In the judge's final order on relocation, he incorporated by reference his prior findings and rulings filed on April 25, 2014. R. 1961-62.

In the UCCJEA matter, the commissioner's initial recommended ruling either found or acknowledged that: (1) the child had lived for 28 ½ months in Appellant's home; (2) the parties allowed Appellee to gain physical custody of the child seven months before the recommendation was issued "for one reason or another"; and, (3) Appellant had a significant role in caring for the child (R. 737-38).

The findings entered on April 25, 2014, stated that: (1) Appellee's had a history of lower standards of moral behavior than Petitioner and the testimony in that regard was significant, R. 1059, 1064; (2) the court was concerned about Appellee's overly restrictive approach to parent-time, R. 1060; (3) because of the parties' and the child's ties to Utah, the child should remain in Utah, R. 1062, ¶18; and, (4) because Appellant elected to finish her college education in Boston while living with her parents, she did not give first priority to raising her child, R. 1060,

B. THE EVIDENCE AT THE UCCJEA EVIDENTIARY HEARING

At the evidentiary hearing held on March 20, 2014, Appellant testified about how she had felt coerced by Appellee's and his family's threats, and her lawyer's ineffectiveness in deciding to turn over custody of the parties' child to Appellee, R. 2946-47; R. 2951, I. 9-25; R. 2952, I. 1-4. She stated that: (1) in the fall of 2012, Appellee had filed a law suit in Massachusetts to try and gain custody of the child, R. 2950, 15-180; (2) her attorney had informed her that Appellee's family was going to take legal action against her mother, and that her mother would go to jail if she did not sign over custody, R. 2947, 18-20, R. 2951, 24-25; (3) Appellee had told Appellant that his family was going to try to have Appellee's mother prosecuted for molesting him if she did not sign over custody; (4) Appellant's mother had told Appellant that Appellee had forced her to have sex with him several times, R. 2945, I. 21-25; (5) Appellee told Appellant approximately ten times in 2013 that his father was going to try to have Appellee's mother prosecuted for having sex with him, R. 2946, I. 17; (6) Appellant was worried about Appellant's threats of prosecuting her mother, R. 2979, I. 23-25; R. 2980, 1-5; (8) Appellant's mom is her best friend, and the child also has a close relationship with Appellant's mom, R. 2954, 1. 7-8; (9) during a mediation in April of 2013, when

Appellant's lawyer told her forcefully that unless she signed over custody,
Appellant's mother would be prosecuted, Appellant became frightened, went along
with her lawyer's advice, and signed over custody, R. 2954, l. 17-21; (10)
Appellant's lawyer was on Lortab during the mediation, and it seemed to Appellant
that her lawyer "was not all there," R. 2955, l. 13-25; (11) deleted (12) Appellee's
family tried to pressure her to sign over custody of the child, R. 2959, l. 20-25);
(13) Appellee's father is an attorney, and despite being represented by counsel,
Appellee's father talked to her about settling the case prior to the mediation, R.
2997, l. 5-14; (14) Appellee had lied about her mother molesting him, about him
not raping her, and about how he had sexually assaulted her mother in public, R.
2957, l. 1-12; and, (15) Appellee has a pornography addiction, R. 2938, 8-13.

Appellant also testified as follows: (1) Appellant had run away from home because his parents had verbally abused him, R. 2938, l. 25, R. 2939, l. 1; (2) Appellee's parents put him in a mental health facility twice, R. 2982; and, (3) Appellee had wanted to commit suicide, R. 2994, l. 4-8. The commissioner's recommendation omitted these facts. R. 821.

Appellant cared for the child when she was not at college, R. 2948, l. 14.

Appellee paid little child support, R. 2958, l. 13-15. When she was at classes her maternal grandmother and great aunt tended the child, R. 2949, l. 25; R. 2950, l. 1-

2. The parties moved to Massachusetts when the child was one year old, R. 1958, l. 5-9. Appellee had no contact with the child for at least six months after he had moved back to Utah, R. 1958, l. 5-9. Appellee paid about \$100 in child support over the year before the mediation, and paid nothing in the way of medical insurance premiums or out-of-pocket medical expenses, R. 2958, l. 17.

Appellant also testified that: (1) Appellee had raped her 20-30 times, R. 2936, l. 2-6; (2) Appellee touched her butt about 100 times without permission, R. 2936, l. 18; (3) Appellant found Appellee naked in bed with her best friend, R. 2937, l. 18-22; (4) Appellant found Appellee looking at pornography every night for two years, R. 1993, 12-25; (5) Appellant observed Appellee walking naked in her residence, R. 2942, l. 4-7; (6) Appellant observed Appellee groping her mother's breasts, R. 2942, l. 12-25; (7) the State of Massachusetts had expressed an interest in prosecuting Appellee, R. 2989, l. 21-25 - R. 1299, l. 1-4.

Appellant wanted to facilitate a close relationship between the child and Appellee, R. 2959, l. 15. She was denied her full, one week parent-time due to having to use up two travel days to travel from Massachusetts to Utah, R. 2961, l. 7-14. Appellee intruded into Appellant's virtual parent-time, R. 2961, l. 19-21. Appellee denied her parent-time when the child was visiting Massachusetts, R. 2967, l. 7-15. Appellant wanted to complete her college degree so she could

support the child, R. 2969, l. 14-15. Appellee did not communicate with her about the child when he returned to Utah, R. 2969, l. 16-25; R. 2970, l. 1-13.

Appellant also testified as follows: (1) her mother had told her that Appellee had taken advantage of her multiple times, R. 3392, l. 20-25; (2) she described her home as not sexually charged, R. 3393, l. 8-17; (3) Appellee raped her repeatedly, R. 3394-96; (4) Appellee never tried to arrange for parent-time when he had moved to Utah, R. 3396, l. 14-20; and, (5) she did not report the rapes because she was trying to fix him and because she was scared of him, R. 3397, l. 8-12.

At the UCCJEA hearing, Jaime Day, Appellant's mother, testified as follows: (1) Appellee would flirtatiously swat her butt, R. 3007, l. 23-25; R. 3008, l. 1-19; (2) Appellee touched her breasts without consent, R. 3008, l. 22-25; R. 3009, l. 1-2; (3) Appellee filed a police report against her for allegedly molesting him, R. 3009, l. 19-24; R. 3013, l. 1-2; (4) while she was sleeping in her bed one night, Appellee got on top of her, told her that she needed to feel what it was like to be loved like she had never been loved before, then threatened her with prosecution if she told anyone what he did, R. 3015, l. 15-25; R. 3016; (5) her attempts to push Appellee off failed, R. 3016; (6) she has seen psychotherapists about the rape incident, R. 3016, l. 24; (7) Appellee invited her to watch pornography with him, R. 3017, l. 13-18; (8) she observed Appellee walking naked daily, R. 3017, l. 22-25;

R. 3018, l. 1-6; (9) Appellee reported that his father was mentally abusive, R. 3020, 10-11; (10) Appellee ran away from home, R. 3021, 1. 4-7; (11) she felt that her family needed to protect Appellee, R. 3021, 14; (12) the police took him to a juvenile mental health facility, R. 3021, 22-25; (13) she encouraged Appellee to cultivate a better relationship with his parents, R. 3023, 1. 2; (14) she would drive Appellee to his parent's home, R. 3023, l. 12-13; (15) Appellee would talk about sex daily, R. 2077, 12-14, R. 3023, I. 14-25; R. 2524, 1; (16) Appellee told her that Appellant's vagina needed to be tightened, R. 3025, 1. 1-7; (17) she took Appellee to a physician who prescribed anti-depression medications, R. 3026, 1-10; (18) Appellee got in bed with Appellant's best friend while Appellant was nine months pregnant, R. 3026, l. 17-22; R. 2527, 1-9; (19) Appellee sexted with the best friend, R. 3027, l. 10-16; (20) Appellant was ridiculed by her Utah friends for getting pregnant, R. 3028, l. 17-20); (21) Appellant was a nurturing mother, R. 3029, l. 9-25; (22) Appellee did not help care for the child, R. 3030, 11-23; R. 3031, l. 1-6; R. 3033, l. 17-25; 3034, l. 1-4; (23) the child adjusted well to living in different places, R. 3031, 1. 7-13; (24) the child and Appellant lived with Appellant's parents and maternal grandparents, R. 3031, l. 20-21; (25) Appellee's mother threatened getting a protective order against her, R. 3032, 7-25; (26) she did not report the sexual assault by Appellee to the police because Appellee's threats intimidated her,

R. 3311, 1. 3-13; (27) Appellee concocted a story to protect himself about the rape by suggesting that a burglar had broken into the home and had raped her, R. 3317, 1. 10-12; R. 2640, 19-23; (29) the atmosphere in the Day home was wholesome, R. 3321, 1. 2125; (30) her husband was very angry when he had heard about Appellee raping her, wanted to report the incident to the police, and to kick Appellee out, R. 3322, 1. 8-24; the Days didn't because they were afraid of Appellee's threats, R. 3323, 1. 2-7; (32) she had withheld the truth about the rape from her husband due to Appellee's threats, R. 3325, 1. 7-15; and, (33) she asked Appellee not to blackmail her, R. 3391, 8.

At the UCCJEA hearing, Carrie Tippetts, Jaime's mother, testified as follows: (1) Appellee lived in her household in Utah and Massachusetts, R. 3041, l. 2; (2) Appellee reported that his parents were abusive, R. 3044, l. 23-24; (3) Appellee refused to return home, R. 3045, l. 2-6; (4) Appellee asked Appellant's parents about their sex life, R. 3048, l. 3-5; (5) Appellee's parents came to her home a few times to visit the baby, R. 3050, l. 1-10; R. 351, l. 24; (7) Appellee staged a false break-in to the residence, R. 3053, l. 1-7; R. 3055, l. 14-19); (8) Appellee had no interest in the baby, R. 3056, l. 6; R. 3058, l. 16-25; R. 3059, l. 1-8; (9) Appellee said that he approved of Appellant's parents raising the child, R. 3061, l. 23-24; (10) Appellee would get angry and destroy household property, R.

3062, 1. 14; (11) Appellee called Jaime a bitch and a slut, R. 3063, 1. 1-10; (12) she caught Appellee in bed with Appellant's best girl friend and walking around naked, R. 3064, 1. 1-9; (13) Appellee did not want his parents raising the child, R. 3064, 1. 24-25; (14) Appellee made sexual references when changing his daughter's diaper, R. 3065, 1. 16-21; and, (15) Appellee regularly would threaten the family, R. 3066, 1. 1-13.

Appellant's father, Mr. Aaron Day, testified as follows: (1) he tried to help Appellee as a father would, R. 3073, l. 9-11; (2) Appellee reported that he was addicted to pornography, R. 3073, 1. 13; (3) Appellee reported that Eric Barnes was emotionally abusive, R. 3074, 1. 6; (4) Appellee's parents permitted him to run away, R. 3074, l. 18; (5) Appellee would talk about sex regularly, R. 3076, l. 1-7; (6) Jaime told him about Appellee raping her, R. 3076, 1. 20-21; (7) because Appellee threatened his family, he did not report the rape to the police, R. 3077, 1. 9-14; (8) he tried to help Appellee find a job, taking him on the road, and talking to him about his pornography addiction, R. 3077, l. 17-25; (9) Appellee asked not to be on the birth certificate, R. 3079, 1. 3-4; (10) Appellant helped care for the baby, R. 3079, 1. 16-17; (12) he was afraid that if he reported Jaime's rape to the police, Appellee would lie about it, R. 3081, l. 3-6; and, (13) Appellee did not want to raise the baby, R. 3081, l. 15-16.

Kennedy Thompson, Appellee's girlfriend, testified as follows: (1) Appellant has never reported that Appellee raped her, R. 3086, l. 7-8; (2) Appellant did not want Appellee to touch her because he had gotten her pregnant, R. 3087, l. 11-12; (3) the Day household joked about sex about six years ago and sex jokes were still going on, R. 3089, l. 17; R. 3090, l. 7-8; (4) she heard Appellee participate in sex talk with others, R. 3091, l. 21-22; (5) the Day household had a sexually permissive environment, R. 3093, l. 8-11; (5) she made out with Appellee while Appellant was sleeping and then got into bed with him, R. 3094, l. 12-14, 24-25; (6) she made out with Appellee a handful of times, R. 3095, l. 4; (7) Appellant is a relatively private person, R. 3096, l. 11-12; and, (8) Appellant and Jaime showered in the same room with her, R. 3097, l. 4-6.

Appellant's grandfather, Tom Day, testified as follows: (1) the attorney who represented Appellant at the mediation, Ms. Ragsdale-Pollock, had only consulted with Aaron day, R. 3100, l. 10-12; (2) Jaime might be a flight risk and Jaime and Aaron were financially challenged, R. 3102, l. 1-6; R. 3103, l. 21; (3) a few days after speaking with Ms. Ragsdale-Pollock, he realized that Jaime was not a flight risk, R. 3105, l. 3-4, 16; (4) he had no concern if Appellant got custody, R. 3105, l. 22-24; (6) Aaron Day only makes \$30-35,000.00 net income annually, R. 3106, l. 16-17; (7) Ms. Ragsdale-Pollock had advised him to resolve the case was by

stipulating that Appellee get temporary custody, R. 3382, l. 23; (8) he never told Eric Barnes that he would train Appellant to be a mother, R. 3383, l. 4-13; and, (9) he had no idea whether Appellant wanted to give up custody, R. 3383, l. 22-24.

Carolyn Barnes, Appellee's mother, testified as follows: (1) the child was doing fabulously while living with her and Eric, R. 3110, l. 1-6; (2) she took the child to see an ophthalmologist about an eye problem, R. 3110, l. 12-20; (3) Appellee is passive-aggressive, R. 3112, I. 8; (4) since Appellee was not at home all day on Mondays and Fridays, she cared for the child on those days, R. 3113, l. 4-5; (5) the child has a close bond with her, R. 3113, 113-15; (6) when Appellee is home he takes care of the child, R. 3113, 1. 20-21; (7) she coaches Appellee on how to care for the child, R. 3113, l. 23; (8) Appellee schedules doctor's appointments for the child, R. 3114, l. 1-4; (9) Appellee moved back to his parents' residence in June of 2012, R. 3115, I. 7-8; R. 3116, I. 18-19; R. 3116, I. 18-22; (10) Appellee has a good relationship with her, R. 3117, I. 1-3; (11) Eric calls Appellee out, R. 3117, l. 15; (12) the child loves all members of the Barnes household, R. 3117, l. 21; (13) on April 1, 2013, Appellant had told her that she had been caring for the child for two days, R. 3133, I. 6-7; R. 3122, I. 15-16; (14) Appellant told her that she was willing to give Appellee 60-70% of parent-time, R. 3122, l. 24; R. 3123, l. 1-2; (15) the parent time established by the commissioner worked well for the

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