2019

Macaela Day, Petitioner/Appellant, v. Tyler Barnes, Respondent/ Appellee : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

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

Ms. Day indicated at two different times in her testimony that at the 4-903 conference she had been planning a possible relocation back to Massachusetts and that, in the meantime, she was going to take online classes (R.2274, 1-13; R.2319, 2-11). She also admitted that many of the reasons she gives for relocation, such as family and educational opportunities, were known to her at the time of the 4-903 conference (R.2318, 13-25; R.2319, 1-2).

Ms. Day admitted that she has had some high-quality virtual parent-time and that most of the time these take place in the privacy of the child's room and she can take as long as she wants (R.2384, 10-25; R.2385, 1-2). Mr. Barnes testified that he gets poor quality virtual parent-time when the child is with Ms. Day (R.2469; R.2487, 9-19). Ms. Day admitted that the child has not always been made available for virtual parent-time with Mr. Barnes (R.2385, 12-18). In apparent recognition of her doubt about her ability to provide consistent virtual parent-

time if the child were with her, Ms. Day proposed that the schedule be less structured if she were granted custody (R.2383, 11-25; R.2384, 1-9).

Additional relevant testimony is as follows: Ms. Day and her family say they did not have money to file a contempt action (R.2294, 14-16) or file a parenting plan (R.2287, 17-20), but that they have money to pay Mr. Barnes travel expenses for parent-time (R.2428, 20-25). Mr. Barnes' testified that he does not feel secure in Ms. Day's proposal that she would pay his travel costs (R.2491, 11-20). Ms. Day paints a picture of church member support for her family that sounds like they are very dependent on help with cooking, yard work, finances, and childcare (R.2418, 12-25; R.2419, 1-7).

Ms. Day's brief creates an incomplete or incorrect picture of the evidence in many ways. Many of these aspects have already been responded to. While this brief cannot respond to every item, some of the most important areas of correction are as follows:

- Regarding item 28 on page 25, Ms. Day makes a vague statement about Mr. Barnes disrespecting her final say authority, and when pressed, cannot think of any examples. There were only 3 incidents that the final say came up: a dance-focused preschool, the kindergarten, and parent-time. Mr. Barnes raised concerns about the first two and then relented but Ms. Day never followed through in registering her (R.2445, 16-18; R2488, 19-22),

and the parent-time dispute (to which Mr. Barnes also gave way) has been shown to be an improper use of her authority (*Supra*, p.21-22).

- Regarding item 16 on page 30, Ms. Day cites page 2480-81 of the record to show that Mr. Barnes had no evidence that Ms. Day had proposed longer parent-time periods so she could remain in Massachusetts and not relocate to Utah in 2015. However, that is not what the transcript shows (R.2480-81). The evidence provided by Mr. Barnes is irrefutable and uncontroverted (*Supra*, p.20-21).
- Regarding item 17 on page 30, Mr. Barnes' threat to take Ms. Day back to court was because she refused to return the child for 5 days after her parent-time had expired (Res. Ex. 6).

After two days of evidence, the Court denied Ms. Day's Motion and added the following notable written findings and conclusions to the commissioner's detailed findings that the court adopted:

- "Despite the June 18, 2015 Order designating Petitioner as the custodial parent if she moved to Utah, Petitioner has never emotionally relocated back to Utah; in fact, based on the evidence presented, it is unclear whether Petitioner has ever physically relocated to Utah with an intent to remain in Utah for any extended period (R.1961, 8);"

- Ms. Day’s desire to relocate is primarily based upon her desire to complete her education and has very little to do with what is in the best interest of the child. While it will benefit Ms. Day, and perhaps ultimately the child, it does not support a finding that relocation is in the best interest of the child (R.1961, 9);

Additionally, in its oral ruling, the Court stated emphatically that the June 18, 2015, stipulated order giving Ms. Day final say on certain issues did not allow her to override the agreed-upon week-on week-off parent-time schedule (R.2560, 22-25; R.2561, 1-5).

E. APPEAL AND REMAND

Ms. Day successfully appealed the aforementioned ruling on the basis that the trial court should not have imposed a burden of proof on her under Rule 108 of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure to demonstrate that the commissioner’s recommendation was erroneous. *Day v. Barnes*, 2018 UT App. 143 ¶20, 427 P.3d 1272. In providing guidance for the district court on remand, this Court stated “that the district court is not necessarily required to rehear the evidence. Nothing in the district court’s order or Day’s arguments on appeal indicate that there was some error in the presentation of evidence.” *Id.* at ¶21. The judge invited the parties to provide a memorandum to address the need for additional evidence (R.2679). After reviewing the parties’ submissions and holding a telephone

conference, the court decided not to take new evidence but instead wanted the parties to redo their closing arguments. This was done on December 21, 2018 (R.2731-2). The court issued its decision on February 20, 2019, denying Ms. Day's Motion to Relocate (R.2738-48).

Summary of the Argument in Response to Appeal

Ms. Day's claim that she has been denied due process of law because the district court was not willing to re-hear the evidence from the 2014 evidentiary hearings on temporary orders fails because it was not appealed in 2014, there was a final order issued in 2015 that resolved the parties' case, the due process issue was not raised in Ms. Day's first appeal to this Court, this Court then remanded the case with a statement that the district court need not hear any new evidence, and the district court relied on that direction in not hearing any additional evidence.

Ms. Day's second issue purports to be a general attack on the findings themselves and the sufficiency of them but is instead a list of evidence Ms. Day thought the court should have given more weight. Consequently, Ms. Day fails to effectively address the actual findings the court did make and the underlying evidence that was there to support those findings. As a result, she has not carried her burden of showing that the findings were insufficient or not supported by

the evidence. Even so, a review of the district court's findings shows a well-reasoned view of the facts that were before it.

Ms. Day's third argument generally claims that the court abused its discretion in denying Ms. Day's Motion to Relocate. However, when taking a view of the current issues and facts of this case, it is clear that the district court was well within its discretion to deny Ms. Day's motion.

Argument in Response to Appeal

I. MS. DAY'S DUE PROCESS ARGUMENT FAILS BECAUSE IT WAS NOT RAISED IN THE FIRST APPEAL, THE COURT ONLY USED ITS KNOWLEDGE AND RECORD OF THE CASE TO INFORM AND SUPPORT ITS DECISION, AND BECAUSE THE COURT HAD BROAD DISCRETION TO REFUSE TO REHEAR OLD EVIDENCE

Ms. Day's claim that the relocation hearing denied her due process fails for several reasons. First, this issue was not raised in her first appeal and goes beyond the scope of that appeal. Ms. Day's new direction is particularly problematic where this Court clearly stated that on remand the judge need not take new evidence because no arguments had been made in Ms. Day's brief to suggest "that there was some error in the presentation of evidence." *Id.* at ¶21. This Court went on to say that the district court may elect . . . to rule on the motion based on the record it has already received" *Id.* The lower court has now relied on that statement in how it handled the case on remand. "A party cannot use the accident of a remand to raise in a second appeal an issue that [she]

could just as well have raised in the first appeal." *United States v. Parker*, 101 F.3d 527, 528 (1996)(cited in *State ex rel. Dep't of Labor v. Riemers*, 2010 ND 43, ¶ 11, 779 N.W.2d 649).

Second, Ms. Day mistakenly views the district court's findings and ruling as being based on res judicata concepts such as a substantial and material change of circumstances (Op. Br. p.33-34). If the court were doing that it would be saying that Ms. Day failed to meet a threshold determination and therefore fails to reach the best interest test. *See Hogge v. Hogge*, 649 P.2d 51 (Utah 1982)(requiring an initial showing of a substantial and material change in circumstances, and second and thereafter, a change is in the best interest of the child). However, a reading of paragraph 3 of the court's Conclusions of Law shows that it is using its previous record and knowledge of the evidence from the 2014 hearings, having heard the witnesses and judged their credibility, to "further inform[] and support[]" the Court's present conclusion that the requested move to Massachusetts is not in the child's best interest (R.2299) (*emphasis added*)." The inserted footnote to paragraph 3 of the Conclusions of Law also shows the judge is using prior evidence and analysis to inform and support his present opinion after hearing the additional evidence of the 2016 hearings (R.2300, fn.3).

The fact that the 2014 hearings were focused on a temporary order or that an incorrect standard was applied with the hindsight provided by this Court in

its prior decision in this case does not prevent the judge from applying his knowledge of the case and its evidence to the new situation or standard that is before him. It is ridiculous to assume that a court must rehear evidence with each new issue that comes before it in order to provide due process. If the Court of Appeals did not require the district court to rehear the evidence of the 2016 objection hearings on relocation, why would it have to rehear the evidence from the 2014 objection hearings?

Third, the court was well within its authority to refuse to rehear witnesses and other evidence it had already heard. Ms. Day has a history of trying to retry her old, stale, false and unsuccessful evidence with every new pleading, hearing, or appeal. This pattern prompted the following statement from the judge at the beginning of the July 6, 2016, evidentiary hearing on Petitioner's Motion to Relocate:

What I am concerned with here, you're essentially arguing that every time we have a hearing in this case we've got to go back to day one and reconsider all of the original factors that we've already considered one, two, three or four times already, and so every hearing is a new hearing where we try to take a second or a third or fourth or fifth bite at the apple at convincing the Court on certain underlying issues that have already been discussed and addressed by the Court (R.2226, 24 to R.2227, 6).

As noted, the 2014 ruling and its findings were not challenged by an appeal and were followed by a final custody order entered between the parties on June 18, 2015 (R.1530).

A district court has broad discretion to manage a civil case. *Dahl v. Harrison*, 2011 UT App. 389, 205 P.3d 139, 144, ¶19. “The court may exclude relevant evidence if its probative value is substantially outweighed by a danger of one or more of the following: unfair prejudice, confusing the issues, . . . undue delay, wasting time, or needlessly presenting cumulative evidence.” Ut. R. of Evid. 403.

The evidence Ms. Days seeks to revisit is six to ten years old. During most of this time, the parties were just teenagers. Many of these facts have been found against Ms. Day in the 2014 hearings (R.1052). This evidence is full of redundant, immaterial, impertinent and scandalous material in violation of Rule 10h of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure that Ms. Day has tried to use over and over to prejudice the factfinder and to intimidate and harass Mr. Barnes who has objected to it in many forms throughout the proceedings (R.339; R.463; R.1334; R1733-35). As time passes, this evidence’s probative value is exceeded by its potentially prejudicial effect. Ut. R. of Evid. 403. The judge has heard these witnesses, judged their credibility, and formulated his opinion about the evidence that was presented which he formalized in written findings (R.1052). In fact, in the hearing on December 21, 2018, he demonstrated that he was very familiar with the evidence and his findings (R.2772, 22 to R.2779). In that hearing and in the evidentiary hearings in 2016 it was obvious that he considered more

recent matters to be more relevant to the relocation question before him which was well within his discretion (R.2390, 19 to R.2391, 5; R.2784).

II. THE COURT'S FINDINGS WERE ENTIRELY SUFFICIENT TO SHOW ITS RATIONAL IN REACHING THE DECISION IT DID

A. APPELLANT'S ATTEMPT TO CHALLENGE THE FINDINGS FROM THE 2014 HEARING IS OUTSIDE THE SCOPE FOR WHICH THEY WERE INCLUDED IN THE RECORD ON RELOCATION

Before discussing the sufficiency of the court's findings, it is important to note the limits of our analysis. One serious flaw in Ms. Day's challenge to the findings is her assumption that because the court made the transcripts and findings from the March 2014 hearings a part of the record for the relocation hearings, those findings are now subject to review by this Court (Op. Br. 36). In the original ruling on this issue, Mr. Barnes' counsel expressed concern about the use Ms. Day might try to make of these materials and the court responded as follows:

I will allow a transcript of the prior proceeding to be made a part of the record . . . not for purposes of reopening any potential appeal of the order that was entered back in 2014 case . . . but only for purposes of shortening this hearing in the sense of not replowing ground that we already plowed in that case, and . . . as I've said, [I] intend to limit today's hearing to issues that have arisen since that 2014 time frame, which have specific relevance to the motion for relocation that is before the Court at this time.

In addition to the transcript of that hearing, it is of course a part of the record of the Court, but it should be clear that the ruling and order that were entered by the Court, the findings of this Court from that 2014 case should also be made part of the record. (R.2231, 1-17).

The district court was consistent with this position during the December 21, 2018, supplemental closing argument hearing (R.2761, 16 to R.2762, 10; R.2784, 16-22; R.2797; R.2801, 22-23). Notwithstanding this clear limitation on the use of the transcript, there are large sections of Ms. Day's brief that not only ignore that ruling but in many cases also ignore the findings of the court from the 2014 hearings as if they were never made. In fact, most every document Ms. Day has filed in the case since the 2014 hearings have selectively ignored the findings of the court from 2014 and Mr. Barnes is left to point that out over and over again. In reality, this entire appeal is essentially an effort to force the court to give Ms. Day a do-over back to 2013. As to Ms. Day's improper challenge to the 2014 findings, the second to last paragraph of page 37 of her brief to the end of the partial paragraph on page 40, almost all of pages 46-49, and many items sprinkled into pages 42-45 should be disregarded (Op. Br. pp37-49).

B. MS. DAY HAS FAILED TO PROPERLY MARSHAL THE EVIDENCE AND THEN SHOW WHY THAT EVIDENCE FAILS TO SUPPORT THE FINDINGS

The burden is on Ms. Day to show that the Court's findings, when viewed in the light most favorable to the court below, *Taft v. Taft*, 2016 UT App 135, 379 P.3d 890, 915, ¶70, are so inadequate that this Court cannot determine if its conclusions were rationally based, *Barnes v. Barnes*, 857 P.2d 257, 259 (UT App. 1993). While the marshaling requirement was relaxed by *State v. Nielsen*, 2014 UT 10, ¶33-44, 326 P.3d 645, the need to appropriately marshal the evidence that

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